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To The Honorable Judge C. Sepolio:
Plaintiffs, Braxton Coles & Rene Coles, hereby submit its opposition to Defendants
Motion To Dismiss the Complaint with Prejudice. The Plaintiffs complaint(s) not only
meets but exceeds the standards governing the form of a complaint contemplated by
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), this court has subject matter jurisdiction in this
matter, and the complaint sufficiently alleges consumer harm and damage. Plaintiffs’
recent written discovery: Interrogations & Request for Admission was intentional not
answered and inexcusable, on behalf of the Defendants. Accordingly, Defendants
motion should be denied. See Exhibits A.
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I. The Plaintiff's claims are sufficiently stated.
Defendants move to dismiss the Plaintiff's Compliant for
(a) Failure to State a Cause of Action and

(b) Lack éf Subject Matter Jurisdiction.

In support of their Motion, Defendants 123 argue that the Complaint lacks, inter alia, a
definition of deception; lacks any example of injury; and lacks a factual basis.
Defendants cite no valid authority to support the proposition that 4 these or any other
supposedly missing ingredients are, in fact, required in the Plaintiffs’ Complaint.

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a) states that a complaint should contain short and
plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief, Fed.R.Civ.P.
8(a) (2), and each allegation must be simple, concise, and direct, Fed.R. CIV. P. 8(d)(1).
The Supreme Court has explained that a complaint need only give the defendant fair

notice of what...

1. Defendants move to dismiss the Complaint for failure to state a cause of action. Fed.
R. 1 Civ. P. 12(b) (6) provides that a party may assert a defense by motion for failure to

state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

2. Defendants mistakenly refer to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(5) - insufficient service of
process, but make no reference to any deficiency regarding service of process

throughout their Motion.

3. Defendants list of hodgepodge of ostensible grounds for dismissal on page 2 of their

Motion, arguments to which are subsumed under the headings contained herein.

4. It appears that Defendants’ Motion should correctly be titled a Motion for a More

Definite Statement.



It seems' incongruous, to require a Plaintiff, in order to secure a motion to dismiss, to
plead more facts than he/she may ultimately need to prove to succeed in the merits if
direct evidence is discovered.

Under Federal Rulev8(a) claimant has no duty to set out all of the relevant facts in
his/her complaint; instead, the statement need only to give the defendant concise
statement of the claim, fair notice of what the plaintiff's claim is, and the grounds upon

which it rests.

Accordingly, Defendants Motion would be considered properly filed only where a
plaintiff's complaint is unintelligible, not where a complaint suffers for lack of detail. The
simplified notice pleading standard relies on liberal discovery rules and summary
judgment motions to define disputed facts and to dispose of unmeritorious claims. See
Swierkiewicz, 534 U.S. at 512. Indeed, courts have found that if the information sought
by the motion is obtainable through discovery, the motion should be denied. See, e.g.,
Towers Tenant Ass'n v. Towers Ltd. P'ship, 563 F. Supp. 566, 569 (D.D.C. 1983)
(denying motion for a more definite statement because details such as dates, times,

names and places are the central object of discovery, and need not be pleaded).

Here, the Plaintiffs Complaint is not unintelligible or confusing and does not violate
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a)’s requirement of a short and plain statement of the
claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief. The Complaint clearly has a more
than sufficient statement of the claim and more than meets the requirement that it be
short and plain. For example, the Complaint specifically identifies the actions of

Defendants and how those actions are wrongful.

Plaintiffs’ describes in more than necessary detail the facts that the Defendants market,
offer to-sell, and sell to homeowners throughout the United States mortgage loan
modification and foreclosure relief services; and market their services to homeowners
who are in financial distress, delinquent on their mortgage loans, or in danger of losing

their homes to foreclosure.



It describes how Defendants contact consumers. Defendants’ representations to
consumers; Defendants’ website claims; Defendants’ package of marketing materials
sent to homeowners: the amount of consumer injury and other activities that put
consumers at further risk and disadvantage. It also describes Defendants’ failure to

keep their promises.

Finally, the Complaint clearly puts Defendants on fair notice of the charges against
them. Specifically, the Complaint charges that Defendants violated Section 5(a) of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a) by misrepresenting, directly or indirectly, expressly or by
implication, that Defendants will obtain for consumers mortgage loan modifications, in
all or virtually all instances, that will make their mortgage payments substantially more
affordable.

The Complaint also charges that Defendants violated Section 310.3, (a)(2)(iii) of the
TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3 by misrepresenting, directly or indirectly, expressly or by
implication, material aspects of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central
characteristics of the loan modification and foreclosure relief services they sell, including
that Defendants will obtain for consumers mortgage loan modifications, in all or virtually

all instances, that will make their mortgage payments substantially more affordable.

Il. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction, despite Defendants’ claim to the contrary.
in Morrison v. Amway Corp., 323 F.3d 920, 925 (11 Cir. 2003), the Eleventh Circuit
cautioned that that the district court should only rely on Rule 12(b)(1) If the facts
necessary to sustain jurisdiction do not implicate the merits of plaintiff's cause of action.
Garcia, 104 F.3d at 1261 (emphasis added). If a jurisdictional challenge does implicate
.the merits of the underlying claim then: The proper course of action for the district court
.. is to find that jurisdiction exists and deal with the objection as a direct attack on the
merits of the plaintiff's case, Judicial economy is best promoted when the existence of a
federal right is directly reached and, where no claim is found to exist, the case is

dismissed on the merits.



This refusal to treat indirect attacks on the merits as Rule 12(b)(1) motions provides,
moreover, a greater level of protection for the plaintiff who in truth is facing a challenge |
to the validity of his/her claim: the defendant is forced to proceed under Rule 12(b)(6) or
Rule 56 both of which place great restrictions on the district court's discretion Id.
(quoting Williamson v. Tucker, 645 F.2d 404, 415-16 (5th Cir.1981) The question of
jurisdiction and the merits of an action will be considered intertwined where, as here, a
statute provides the basis for both the subject matter jurisdiction of the federal court and
the plaintiff's substantive claim for relief. Id. at 926 quoting Sun Valley Gasoline, Inc. v.
Ernst Enters., 711 F.2d 138, 139-40 (9th Cir.1983). In the case at bar, Section 5(a) of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a) (FTC Act) and the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S. C.§§
6101 - 6108 (TSR) provide the bases for the subject matter jurisdiction of this Court and

the FTC’s substantive claim for relief.

Under the FTC Act, the FTC empowered and directed to prevent persons, partnerships,
or corporations, except banks, savings and loan institutions described in section
57a(f)(3) of this title from using unfair methods of competition in or affecting commerce
and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, while the TSR

prohibits abusive and deceptive telemarketing acts or practices.

Defendants are not Banks, Savings & Loan Intuitions’, or any other entity exempt from
the FTC Act or the TSR. In its Final Amendment Rule, the FTC promulgated the latest 5
version of the TSR on January 29, 2003. In response to challenges from banking
institutions seeking to exempt banks and loan institutions from the rule, the rule sets

forth definitions of banks and loan institutions as those terms are relevant in this matter.

In discussing the Amended Rule’s Scope of Regulations, the Plaintiffs discussed the
reasons why entities like the Defendants in this case are not exempt from either the
TSR or the FTC Act and noted that, from the inception of the Rule, the Commission has
asserted that parties acting on behalf of exempt organizations are not thereby exempt
from the FTC Act. And thus, for example, a nonbank company that contracts with a

bank to provide telemarketing services on behalf of the bank is covered by this Rule.
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This reading is consistent with the Commission’s longstanding interpretation of the
scope of its authority under the FTC Act, as well as with judicial precedent.
Furthermore, the commission’s authority was clarified in § 133 of the Gramm Leach-
Bliley Act (GLBA), which states that any person that is controlled directly or indirectly by
any bank (as defined in Section 3 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act) and is not itself
a bank shall not be deemed to be a bank for purposes of any provisions applied by the
FTC under the FTC Act.

Most recently, a federal district court held that, under this language, the Rule applies to
telemarketing by a mortgage subsidiary of a national bank. As the court stated, the
definition of a bank identified by Congress simply does not include the subsidiaries of
banks. The Commission also explained that it believes it is unnecessary to state in the

Rule what is already plain in the telemarketing Act.

The Commission declines to adopt the interpretation of some commenter's that the FTC
Act itself exempts non-bank entities based on their affiliation with or provision of
services to exempt banks, and the recommendations of those commenter's who sought
an exemption from the Rule for bank subsidiaries or agents, to do so would be contrary
to the Commission's interpretation of its jurisdictional boundaries, and would

unnecessarily limit the reach of the Rule.

In discussing their supposedly exempt status as a banking-type institution, Defendants
may attempt to bolster their argument by falsifying the outcome of a case to mislead the
Court.

ﬁfendants cite The Broadcast Team, Inc. v. Federal Trade Commission, 429
[F.Supp.2d 1292, 1298 (M.D. Fla. 2006) for the proposition that the U.S. District Court

for the Middle District of Florida halted the FTC from a similar overreach of power. In|

that case, however, contrary to the Defendants’ misrepresentations, the Court granted|

the FTC's Motion to Dismiss, dismissed The Broadcast Team's Complaint, and ordered

fthe clerk to close the case




The FTC Act and the TSR provide the bases for both the subject matter jurisdiction of
this Court and the Plaintiffs substantive claim for relief and these issues are therefore
intertwined. Because the Court's jurisdiction and the merits of the action are intertwined,
the Defendants’ jurisdictional challenge implicates the FTC’s causes of‘action, and the
proper course is for the Court to find that jurisdiction exists.

Any National bank, State bank, District Bank, and any Federal branch and Insured
branch citing FDIA, 12 U.S.C. 1813(a)(1)(A)). Defendants Motion to Dismiss.

Ill. The FTC Rules has alleged actual harm and Plaintiffs Complaints’ alleges consumer

harm and injury to: Forgery, Fraud, Tort, Theft, Deceptions, and Breach of Contract.

IV. Conclusion.

In short, the Plaintiffs’ Complaint fully complies with the pleading requirements of
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a) and provides Defendants fair notice of the charges
against them and the grounds therefore; discovery and argument will add further detail
soon.

| was deterred from working on my case to answer Defendants frivolous motions to
escape the problem they caused.

This is not a rubber stamp case the Defendants has purposely complicated the case to
ward off a common person to ever discover their wrong doing either for attorneys and a
client would not be able to afford professional, so the Defendants motions are all
frivolous and interfering with serious discovery that would conclude this prolonged case.

| motion to Defendants submitting anymore motion to my/Plaintiffs case.

This Court has subject matter jurisdiction in this matter. Additionally, the FTC has
sufﬁciently alleged harm. Accordingly, for the reasons set forth herein, the Plaintiffs’
respectfully requests that the Court deny Defendants Joint Motion to Dismiss, Notice of
Hearing by Submission Complaint and Revoke any Special Privileges that were granted
with Prejudice.

Dated: May 25, 2023

Respectfully submitted, Plaintiffs, Pro Se Litigants: Braxton Coles & Rene Coles

15319 Carsen Bend Dr, Houston, Texas 77049

renecoles1@hotmail.com / Ph. (409) 800-3161

7



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE | HEREBY CERTIFY

That on May 26, 2023, | Certified Mailed the foregoing Plaintiff's Opposition to
Defendants' Motion to Dismiss the Complaint with Prejudice with the USPS Harris

County, Texas in-person mailed; which will send notice of filing to the following:

Attorneys for Defendants: Kathern B. Davis bar# 24050364,Brian A, Paino bar#
2465862, Kasey Davis, Mc Glinchey Stafford, PLL —BEWARE OF EMPLOYESS,
EMPLOYED with DEFENDANTS ARE IN CONTRACT OF INTEREST COLLECTIVELY
IN PRO SE'S CASE.

Mark D. Cronenwett bar# 00787303, Nicholas M. Fame bar#24093448 (Attorneys for
Mackie,Mackie Wolf Zientz & Mann and Ester Gonzales.

Defendants (Collectively): U.S. Bank Nat'l Assoc., as Trustee, PHH, Mc Glinchey-

Stafford et.al. Law Firm, Ocwen, New Rez et.al...
Dated: May 26, 2023
Respecitfully submitted,

Plaintiffs- Pro Se Litigants: Braxton Coles
Rene Coles



